
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

A G E N D A

Meeting: Wednesday, 3rd June, 2020 at 2.00 pm.

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical location.

VIRTUAL MEETING - LINK TO VIEW 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

2.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

3.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

4.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

5.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 4th March, 2020.

5 - 12

FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Housing Management Forum Recommendations  

To consider the recommendations of the Housing Management 
Forum held on 9th March, 2020.

13 - 16

(D) 8.  Marina Village Remediation 
 

17 - 24

(D) 9.  COVID-19 Council Tax Hardship 
 

25 - 36

(D) 10.  COVID-19 Financial Management 
 

37 - 42

(D) 11.  Cumbria CVS - People in the Lead 
 

43 - 46

URGENT ITEM 

12.  Heritage Lottery Fund Grant - Shipyard Town Project  47 - 66

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Barlow
Biggins
Blezard
Brook (Chairman)
H. Edwards
Hamilton
Maddox
W. McClure
Morgan
Pemberton
L. Roberts (Vice-Chair)



For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Jon Huck
Democratic Services Manager
01229 876312/ 07825206525
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: 26th May, 2020



This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Meeting: Wednesday 4th March, 2020
at 2.00 pm. (Committee Room No. 4)

PRESENT:- Councillors Brook (Chairman), Roberts (Vice-Chairman), Barlow, Biggins, 
Blezard, H. Edwards (Items 1 to 12), W. McClure, McLeavy (Items 1 to 12 only), 
Maddox, Morgan and Pemberton.

Officers Present:- Sue Roberts (Director of Resources), Michael Barry (Interim 
Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment), John Penfold (Corporate 
Support Manager), Debbie Storr (Temporary Senior Legal Officer), Sharron Rushton 
(Democratic Services Officer), Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager) (Items 1 
to 11 only) and Paula Westwood (Democratic Services Officer – Member Support) 
(Items 1 to 9 only).

88 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Hamilton.

Councillor McLeavy had attended as a substitute.

89 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 5th February, 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record.

90 – Presentation on Barrow-in-Furness Future High Streets Fund

A presentation was given by Michael Barry (Interim Assistant Director - Regeneration 
and Built Environment) on the Barrow-in-Furness Future High Streets Fund.

RESOLVED:- To note the presentation by the Interim Assistant Director - 
Regeneration and Built Environment.

91 – Barrow-in-Furness Future High Streets Fund Update

The Interim Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment reported that over 
the past five months the Council had been preparing proposals for inclusion within the 
application for the Future High Street Fund.  The report sought to update the Executive 
on the progress in developing the bid and to highlight the emerging proposals that 
could help inform the application.

A three week consultation period had been held in January where views were sought 
on the challenges and opportunities facing Barrow Town Centre.  Through that 
process over 700 responses had been received with key messages including:-

The desire for the Town Centre to be bustling, vibrant and busy;
The need to reduce the level of vacancies on the high street;
The need for more things to do and enjoy within the town centre; 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



The need for a more diverse offer including reduced exposure to poor weather;
The need for improved town centre accessibility; and
The creation of a more attractive town centre.

The feedback together with a technical assessment of options and engagement with 
a Borough Council chaired project board (which included Cumbria LEP, Cumbria 
County Council, BAE and Barrow BID) had enabled the Council to identify a set of 
prospective options for inclusion within the Future High Street Fund Application.  

These were subject to a further round of public consultation and included:-

Improvements to the market to make it better for stall holders and shoppers with better 
connections between the market, Dalton Road and Portland Walk;
Creation of new leisure and civic space to hold events and play-space on land to south 
of the Town Hall;
Enhancing the role of the Town Hall to allow more public access including possible 
Tourist Information Centre, café and Public Sector Hub; and
Improved bus, walking and cycling movement around the town and creating better 
mobile connectivity.

While potentially significant in themselves; it was also considered that these 
interventions could act as catalyst for further investment in the heart of the town to 
bolster the future sustainability of the high street and the role of Barrow more widely.

As part of the wider work to develop and refine the application further community 
engagement activity was now ongoing.  That process intended to support the 
continued development of proposals, part of a wider conversation for the town, 
including around the Town Deal.

Following the submission of the draft application it was intended to continue 
development working towards the submission of the final draft by 30th June, 2020.

RESOLVED:- To note the progress and next steps in developing the Future High 
Street Fund proposals within Barrow.

92 – High Street Heritage Action Zone

The Committee was reminded that the High Streets Heritage Action Zone Programme 
was a nationwide initiative designed to secure lasting improvements to historic high 
streets for the communities who use them.  It was funded by the Ministry of Housing 
Communities and Local Government and run by Historic England.  The goal of the 
fund was to make the high street a more attractive, engaging and vibrant place for 
people to live, work and spend time.

The proposed Heritage Action Zone for Barrow was located within Central Barrow 
Conservation Area, focussed on Duke Street.  The funding was intended to deliver a 
meaningful high impact programme including physical works to properties, the public 
realm and community engagement through a programme of event and activities linked 
to the heritage of Barrow.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



Duke Street Barrow has been shortlisted for Heritage Action Zone funding (HAZ).  The 
Council had submitted a full application in December 2019 and the outcome was 
awaited.

Should funding be awarded, the Council would be required to sign a formal agreement 
with Historic England to deliver the package of measures within the HAZ Scheme. The 
Council would be expected to have this in place by April 2020 in order to begin 
delivering the Heritage Action Zone to meet government timescales. 

Given the time constraints it was requested that the Committee agreed to the principle 
of the Council assuming the role of Accountable Body; that the Director of Resources 
be given delegated authority to agree the funding agreement on behalf of the Council 
and make necessary arrangements to receive and manage the funding over the 
lifetime of the project which would run from April 2020 to March 2024.

The Council’s contribution to the project, or match funding, was estimated to be £400k.  
That amount may vary slightly once the offer was assessed and Members were asked 
to approve the use of the Major Projects reserve for the project.

RESOLVED:-

1. To note the progress made with respect to the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) 
funding application to Historic England for Duke Street Barrow;

2. To agree the principle of Barrow Borough Council acting as Accountable Body 
for Heritage Action Zone Funding;

3. To authorise the Director of Resources to negotiate and finalise the funding and 
any appropriate legal agreements required to progress the HAZ; and

4. To approve the use of the Major Projects reserve for the Council’s own 
contribution to the project.

93 – Updating of IT Systems

The Director of Resources report sought approval to update IT systems used across 
the Council.  Functional IT systems were those that were used to perform particular 
functions for service delivery as opposed to core or corporate IT systems such as 
email, file storage, security and office tools.

She reported that the report was prompted by the need to update the Main Accounting 
System and associated modules which were vital to ensure sound financial 
governance and internal control arrangements.  Other functional IT systems used 
across areas of the Council such as Customer Services and Development Services 
also required updating and investment.  The Committee had previously agreed for the 
Revenues and Benefits IT system arrangements to be extended by the Director of 
Resources to ensure an orderly transition.

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:- 

1. To delegate the updating of the Main Accounting System and the future 
arrangements for Revenues and Benefits IT to the Director of Resources 
including any tender or procurement process and award; and

2. Recommendations 2, 3, 4 and 5 as described in the report were deferred to the 
next meeting to enable further consideration of arrangements for the delivery of 
IT Systems.

94 – Council Finances Quarter 3 2019-2020

The Committee considered a detailed report of the Director of Resources that set out 
a summary of the Council finances for the period 1st April, 2019 to 31st December, 
2019.  The report had included the General Revenue Fund, the General Fund 
Reserves, Commercial Properties, the Capital Programme, Treasury Management, 
Budget Strategy and the Housing Revenue Account.

RESOLVED:- To note the Council Finances Quarter 3 2019-2020 report.

95 – Council Performance Indicators Quarters 1-3

The Committee considered progress on the service performance indicator outputs for 
Quarters 1-3.

Where there had been significant variation in the outputs compared to Quarters 1-3 
the reasons for the variation was given as follows:-

The number of food safety standard inspections were marginally below target.  Public 
Protection were undertaking a review of the E risk premises to prioritise these until the 
end of quarter 4.  The team also aimed to inspect any remaining unrated premises 
before the year-end. 

The total attendance for Quarter 3 was above target due to the Pantomime receiving 
attendance levels which were higher than anticipated.  The Forum would continue to 
host great events in both theatre and room hire. 

The ‘Operational/ Contractor’ performance indicators were marginally below the target 
set but had improved significantly since Quarter 1. That was attributable to 
improvements in data reporting and a targeted approach by the Streetcare Team and 
the waste contractor.

Life Leisure had seen a net rise of 64 members since monitoring started in August 
2019.  There had been a significant fall in the net number of members which was 
attributable to a single event relating to corporate memberships.

RESOLVED:- To note the report and continue to receive the performance indicators 
report on a quarterly basis.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



REFERRED ITEMS

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION

96 – Reviewing the Member Development Strategy

The Committee was informed that the Member Training Working Group had revised 
the Member Development Strategy to ensure continuation of effective Member 
Development.  The Strategy was reviewed on a biennial basis in conjunction with the 
Democratic Services Manager, the Democratic Services Officer (Member Support) 
and the Member Training Working Group.

In preparing the strategy the recommendations from the scrutiny review into Member 
training had been considered as follows:-`

The Member Development Strategy and Member Learning Programme from 2019/21 
should reference and be linked to the new Council Plan ensuring Members had the 
necessary skills and knowledge to deliver the objectives set out in the Plan. 

Substitute Members who had been unable to complete the mandatory training should 
complete within an agreed timescale or consideration given by Political Groups and 
the Council that they were replaced.

All training and briefings from all service areas should be managed, recorded and 
monitored by Democratic Services prior to and instead of any separate arrangements 
being made with Members – Managers had been informed and that would be 
managed through Management Group.

Service areas to include an in-kind cost for their time and resources for delivery of 
internal training for Members – That was not necessary, Member training was part of 
the role of these service areas.

The Chief Executive to lead quarterly thematic briefings for all Members and relevant 
Officers – That would be aligned to similar comments coming from the Managers 
values and Behaviours programme.

Training for the remainder of 2020/21 to be delivered in the afternoons with the latest 
start time of 4.00 pm. and a limit of two hours per training session would be 
accommodated where possible.

Training attendance for the remainder of 2019/20 to be prioritised by those Members 
who had identified a need or who would benefit from a specific session – That would 
be considered in 2020/21.

Group Leaders and Whips to actively encourage Members to attend training – That 
was now in place.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



The Member Training Working Group had revised the Strategy document which was 
considered by the Committee.

RECOMMENDED:- To recommend the Council to approve the revised Member 
Development Strategy.

97 – Draft Climate Change Policy and Action Plan

The Public Protection Manager reminded the Committee that following the Climate 
Change resolution of Council in July, the draft policy and action plan had been 
developed by the Climate Change Working Group to demonstrate and clarify the 
Council’s position and ambitions. 

The Tyndall Centre for Climate Change Research at the University of Manchester had 
calculated the Council’s carbon change target enabling it to reach zero or near zero 
carbon no later than 2042.

The Climate Change Working Group had suggested going further, aiming to reach net 
carbon zero no later than 2037.

To achieve the ambitious target of net zero, the Council would need to reduce 
emissions from the Councils estate and its operations; reduce energy consumption 
and emissions from homes and businesses in the Borough; reduce emissions from 
transport; reduce consumption of resources, increasing recycling and reducing waste; 
increase carbon capture to offset emissions; and increase public awareness around 
climate change.

The Committee considered the Climate Change Policy and Action Plan.

RECOMMENDED:- To recommend the Council to approve the Climate Change Policy 
and Action Plan.

98 – Review of Constitution (including Officer and Committee Delegations)

The Committee considered a detailed report of the Monitoring Officer.

Following the Local Government Association (LGA) Governance Review and a review 
of the constitution the report sets out proposed changes to the constitution to add 
clarity to the Council’s operations and delegations.  It brought in a definition of the 
Council’s Policy Framework and also sought to introduce a new general public 
participation scheme.

Arising from the recommendations of the LGA Governance Review consideration had 
been given to the number of Committees that the Council had and the report asked 
Members to consider its Committee structure and for any Committee changes to take 
effect from the Annual Meeting in the new Municipal Year.

The proposals supported the Council’s ambitions moving forward.  Work was 
continuing on other elements of governance which would be brought to a future 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



meeting and would also have regard to any recommendations which may come out of 
the Corporate Peer Challenge.

Comments raised at the meeting had been taken on board in the report on the Council 
Agenda.

RECOMMENDED:-

To recommend the Council:-

1. To approve the proposed changes to the constitution as detailed within Appendix 
1 of the report with immediate effect;

2. To approve the revisions to the Proper Officer appointment and Officer Scheme 
of Delegation as detailed in Appendices 2 and 3, including the appointment of 
Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer to take effect as detailed in 
the report;

3. To approve the revised terms of reference and delegations to Committees as set 
out in Appendix 4 of the report to take effect from the start of the new Municipal 
Year from the date of the annual meeting in May;

4. To approve the General Public Participation Scheme as attached at Appendix 5 
of the report; and 

5. To approve the revisions to the Financial Regulations and Contract Standing 
Orders as attached at Appendix 6 of the report.

The meeting closed at 4.08 pm.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

3rd June, 2020

(D) AGENDA ITEM NO. 7

RECOMMENDATIONS

OF THE

HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

9th March, 2020

*Subject to the protocol agreed by Council

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



The recommendations of the meeting of the Housing Management Forum held on 
9th March, 2020 are attached.

COPIES OF THE DETAILED REPORTS ON THESE ITEMS HAVE BEEN 
CIRCULATED PREVIOUSLY TO ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL.

The Council has agreed that the following protocol should operate:-

- The Executive Committee shall automatically agree any such 
recommendation or refer it back for further consideration.

- If on re-submission the Executive Committee is still unwilling to approve the 
recommendation, it is automatically referred to full Council for decision.

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



HOUSING MANAGEMENT FORUM

Date of Meeting:       9th March, 2020

Reporting Officer:   Janice Sharp, Assistant Director 
- Housing

(D)

(i)

Title:     Review of Policy Statement: Tackling Anti-Social
              Behaviour in the Council Housing Stock

Summary and Conclusion:

The purpose of the report was to provide Members with information on the review of 
the Housing Service Policy Statement -Tackling Anti-social Behaviour in the Council 
Housing Stock.  A copy of the revised Policy Statement had been included as an 
appendix to the report.

Recommendation:

1. To note the information contained in the report; and

2. To agree to adopt the reviewed Policy Statement. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Executive Committee
3 June 2020

Marina Village Remediation

 
Report from:  Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place

Report Author: David Haughian, Programme Manager

Wards:  Central Ward

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 This report seeks approval to progress key work streams on the Marina Village 

remediation project and to note the award of Multi-disciplinary consultancy 
services to Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd. These work streams include 
ecological surveys and translocation works, erection of security fencing, ground 
water monitoring, site investigation work and other works that facilitate the site 
redevelopment and submission of a planning application

1.2   Marina Village is a key housing development site in Barrow-in-Furness. The 
Council is seeking to secure high quality housing development at what will be an 
attractive waterfront location. 

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1It is recommended that Executive Committee:- 

1) Note the award of contract for Multi-Disciplinary support services for 
the Marina Village Project to Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd as 
detailed within the report;

2) Authorise the Director for People and Place, in consultation with the 
Director of Resources and the Chair of Executive Committee, to 
procure and award contracts for the workpackages identified under 3.5 
of the report to support the Marina Village Project, subject to budget 
availability; and

3) Authorise the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the 
Director of Resources, and Chair of Executive Committee to submit 
business cases and enter into grant funding agreements to support 
the delivery of the Marina Village Project, unless there is a direct 
financial commitment which would be subject to Executive Committee 
approval.

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 Project Background and Justification

3.1.1 The adopted Barrow Port Area Action Plan (AAP) sets out the vision for the 
redevelopment of Marina Village. As part of the AAP, it is proposed that the site 
is allocated as the Marina Village Housing Site, which is suitable for the 
development of around 650 houses. The Barrow Borough Local Plan confirms 
the Council’s continued support for the Marina Village, as a strategic priority 
through the allocation of the site under reference SHL001.

3.1.2 The Marina Village Allocation presents an opportunity for Barrow Borough to 
deliver a significant regeneration project with far reaching positive effects for the 
enhancement and prosperity of the Barrow Borough. However, there are a 
number of challenges to overcome to redevelop the site, including:

- Significant contaminated land issues
- Large populations of common lizards and slow worms on the site
- The potential for ground water contamination
- Securing the site
- Diversion of statutory infrastructure
- Demolition of redundant buildings
- Procurement of specialist contractors to deliver remediation works

3.1.3  At its meeting on 4 September 2019, the Executive committee approved the 
Master Plan Framework and phasing strategy and to progress some initial work 
streams around ecology and Japanese Knotweed. Furthermore, £650k was 
allocated to the project to support the development of the scheme and to act as 
match funding for any grants secured.  

3.1.4 Barrow Borough Council does not currently have the in-house expertise to 
address these issues on their own. Therefore, the Council sought to appoint a 
multi-disciplinary consultant to support its officers during the delivery of this 
complex project. This report updates on that appointment and sets out the next 
steps required to understand site constraints, secure planning permission and 
funding approvals in order to move the Marina Village forward to the next stages 
of development. 

3.2 Project Funding

3.2.1  The Council has allocated £650k to support the development of the Marina 
Village Project, as agreed at Barrow’s Executive Committee dated 4 September 
2019 (Min 34). 

3.2.2 Barrow Borough Council are currently seeking Local Authority Accelerated 
Construction Funding from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government to remediate the Marina Village site. A funding decision is expected 

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



in Summer 2020. The funds allocated to the Marina Village Project will act as 
match to any central government funding secured for the project. 

3.3 Project Governance

3.3.1 The project structure and governance for this project aligns with existing 
arrangements that Barrow Borough Council adopts for other significant projects. 
Accordingly several key roles and individuals have been identified for successful 
project delivery including:-

Senior Responsible Owner Steph Cordon
Programme Manager David Haughian
Strategy Lead                                Michael Barry
Property Lead                             David Joyce

3.3.2  The purpose of the Marina Village Project Board is to ensure successful delivery 
of the project and will direct the project accordingly. It will be responsible for 
communications between the project management team and internal/external 
stakeholders, including Barrow Council Members.

3.3.3  The Project Board will agree and monitor the project programme, ensure risks 
are monitored and managed, manage project communications, ensure 
appropriate resources are available to deliver the project and ensure successful 
project delivery. 

3.4 Project Procurement

3.4.1 The Council invited Multi Disciplinary consultants from Lots 2b from Cumbria 
County Council’s Professional Services Framework.  The table below sets out 
the timetable. 

Event Date

Issue Mini Comp 14th Feb 2020

Deadline for receipt of clarifications 16th March 2020

Deadline for receipt of submissions 20th March 2020

Evaluation of submissions 
completed

27th March 2020

3.4.2 One consultant (Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd) submitted a compliant bid. 
No response was received from consultant B and C and consultant D declined to 
tender.

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



3.4.3 Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd’s tender complied with the requirements of 
the ITT. 

3.4.4 The Compliant tender was evaluated based on a 60:40 quality:price award criteria 
as set out below:

Criteria Ref Maximum Score Total
1 QUALITY – 60%

 Team’s Experience of delivering similar 
commissions

 Method Statement 
 Innovation
 Programme

20%
20%
10%
10%

2 PRICE – 40%
 Rates 

40%

3.4.5 The quality questions were independently assessed by CCC and Barrow Borough 
Council staff. The quality assessments were checked for consistency. Scores 
then had the appropriate weightings applied to produce a total quality score. The 
average score was then deduced. 

3.4.6 The rates within the task scheduled completed by Capita Property and 
Infrastructure Ltd were arithmetically checked.  The total value following the 
financial assessment is then used to determine the financial score.  The lowest 
value is awarded 100 percent of the marks with others values given a 
proportionate score in accordance with the details in the ITT. As only Capita 
Property and Infrastructure Ltd submitted a tender, Capita Property and 
Infrastructure Ltd were awarded 100% (400 points) for their price score.

3.4.7 Finally the quality score and financial score were added to produce the overall 
score provided in the table above. The results of the tender process are 
summarised as follows:-

Tenderers 
Invited

Tender Return (£) Overall
Score as applicable

Overall 
Ranking

1. Capita 
Property and 
Infrastructure 
Ltd

NEC Option E (rates provided) 900/1000 1

2. B Unable to deliver using current 
rates 

N/A N/A

3. D Insufficient resource to respond N/A N/A

4 C No response N/A N/A

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



3.4.8  Officers recommended that Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd were awarded 
the commission through Lot 2b of the Professional Services Framework. Key 
elements of the works required on the Marina Village site are time-sensitive and 
the tender was awarded under the exception provisions as permitted by the 
Contract Standing Orders. This reports the approved award to Executive 
Committee. 

3.5 Next Steps

3.5.1  Following the award of contract to Capita Property and Infrastructure Ltd, it is 
essential that the project maintains momentum in order to satisfy funders that the 
project can be contractually committed by March 2021. In order to achieve this, 
the Council needs to progress a number of critical work streams, including:

- Ecological surveys and translocation works – This work stream involves 
undertaking further site surveys, preparing translocation sites, erecting reptile 
fencing on site and the translocation of reptiles and other ecology off site.

- The erection of security fencing to prevent access to the site by members of 
the public whilst surveys and construction works are ongoing.

- Associated desk based and intrusive works and activities required to secure 
planning permission and support redevelopment of the site. 

- Undertaking further intrusive ground water monitoring and site investigation 
work to inform the sites remediation strategy

3.5.2   Authority is therefore sought for the Director of People and Place to procure and 
award future works contracts and to facilitate activities to enable the site 
developments associated with the Marina Village Project. Works will be procured 
in line with Council’s Purchasing Procedures and will only be awarded if 
sufficient funds are available within the Council’s project budget line. 

3.5.3  Within the next 12 months, it is also anticipated that the Council will have the 
opportunity to submit business cases and negotiate funding agreements with 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government and other potential 
project funders (such as the Local Enterprise Partnership, Town’s Fund) to 
support delivery of the project. It is therefore recommended that the Council 
authorises the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the Director of 
Resources, and Chair of Executive Committee to submit business cases and 
enter into grant funding agreements to support the delivery of the Marina Village 
Project, unless there is a direct financial commitment which would be subject to 
Executive Committee approval. 

4.0 Consultation 
4.1 The project team are preparing a communication plan for the project, which sets 

out key milestones where key partners and local residents will be consulted. This 
includes prior to any intrusive surveys or access restrictions to the site and 
prior/during the formal planning process. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



5.0 Alternative Options 
Option (a) (recommended): To progress with the critical work streams to support the 
remediation of the Marina Village Site, which include further desk based, intrusive 
works and associated activities and negotiating funding agreements.

Option (b) Delay the project and accept the following risks
 Inability to progress the scheme in line with the current programme, which 

aims to award contract to the remediation contractor by the end of March 
2021.

 The cost to deliver the scheme will escalate through inflation

 The social economic risk benefits of the scheme will not be realised to a 
much later date. 

Option (c) Decide not to pursue the Scheme and accept that the Marina Village 
development scheme will be delayed.

Option (d) Seek to develop an alternative housing site. However, in the existing local 
plan there is no other site that could achieve the outputs of 650 homes. 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 This project primarily supports Priority 2 of the Barrow Council Plan, creating a 

vibrant, safe and welcoming place where people want to live. Marina Village is 
the largest housing site named in the Local Plan. The Marina Village is 
specifically mentioned within the Local Plan as “part of a comprehensive 
redevelopment of Barrow’s historic waterfront”.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 £650k has been allocated to support the development of the Marina Village 

project, as agreed at Barrow’s Executive Committee dated 4 September 2019.

7.1.2 All works are procured in line with Council’s Financial Regulations and Contract 
Standing Orders and will only be awarded if sufficient funds are available within 
the projects budget line. Capita’s Multi disciplinary services contract is an NEC 
Professional services contract Option E with a value of up to £250k. 

7.1.3 Barrow Borough Council have a dedicated programme manager to support 
delivery of the scheme for 2 days per week. Support from planning, legal and 
finance will be required as the project progresses but this is expected to be 
limited and deliverable within existing resource constraints. 

Page 22

Agenda Item 8



Legal 
7.1.4. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 enables local authorities to enter 

into contracts to deliver their functions.
7.1.5 The Professional Services framework was established in compliance with the 

Public Contracts Regulations.
7.1.6 Under the Council’s constitution and the contract standing orders awards over 

£100,000 are for decision by the Executive Committee.  The tender was awarded 
under the exception provisions as permitted by the Contract Standing Orders 
and is reported to Executive Committee. 

7.1.7 Future procurement will be undertaken in line with the Council’s Financial 
Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules.

Equality and Diversity 

7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No  – The procurement 
process will be undertaken in a transparent way. Tenders are assessed by more 
than one assessor with clear quality/cost criteria. Any unsuccessful tenderer will 
have the opportunity to discuss their scores and will receive feedback. An EIA 
will relate to any future master planning or planning proposals for the site, which 
does not form part of this report. 

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Scheme cost overrun The Council has 

allocated £650k to 
support the development 
of the Marina Village 
project. If the project 
were to overspend it 
would mean that 
additional funding would 
have to be sourced to 
deliver the works or the 
works would have to 
cease.

Barrow’s Programme 
Manager will produce 
regular financial 
forecasts, a project 
programme and risk 
register. The programme 
manager will ensure that 
the costs do not increase 
beyond the available 
budget. 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Programme delays Programme delays 

would mean that the 
Council are not in a 
position to be 
contractually committed 
to the project by March 
2021.

The programme manager 
will produce a regularly 
updated programme of 
work. The programme 
manager will oversee all 
contracts to maintain the 
current Marina Village 
project programme. The 
current Marina Village 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



programme illustrates 
that this date is 
achievable. 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Delays associated with Covid 
19 restrictions 

Delays to programme 
and cost over run

All Contractors or 
consultants will need to 
produce a Risk 
assessment and method 
statement and if relevant 
a Construction Phase 
Plan before commencing 
works. The Council can 
hold virtual meetings with 
the consultants. Sub-
contractors will be 
required to demonstrate 
they can abide by strict 
social distancing rules. 

Contact Officers 
David Haughian, david.haughian@cumbria.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

None

Page 24

Agenda Item 8

mailto:david.haughian@cumbria.gov.uk


PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Executive Committee 
3 June 2020

COVID-19 Council Tax Hardship

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  All

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Council has received a £798,140 new grant funding to support economically 

vulnerable people and households in the Borough.  The expectation is that the 
majority of the hardship fund will be used to provide council tax relief, alongside 
existing local council tax support schemes.  Government expected all recipients 
of working age local council tax support to receive a further reduction in their 
annual council tax bill of £150 or less if the net liability were less.  Cumbria-wide 
the relief was doubled to £300.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended that the Executive Committee:- 

1. Endorse the £300 award to all recipients of working age local council 
tax support during the financial year 2020-2021, or less if a lower award 
reduces  the bill to nil;

2. Note the Council Tax Discretionary Relief Scheme; and
3. Note that the COVID-19 council tax hardship scheme is cash limited.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The Council has received a £798,140 new grant funding to support economically 

vulnerable people and households in the Borough.  The expectation is that the 
majority of the hardship fund will be used to provide council tax relief, alongside 
existing local council tax support schemes.

3.2 The Government’s strong expectation is that billing authorities will provide all 
recipients of working age local council tax support during the financial year 2020-
2021 with a further reduction in their annual council tax bill of £150.  Billing 
authorities will use their discretionary powers under s13A(1)(c) of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992.

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



3.3 Where a taxpayer’s liability for 2020-2021 is, following the application of council 
tax support, less than £150, then their liability would be reduced to nil.  Where a 
taxpayer’s liability for 2020-2021 is nil, no reduction to the council tax bill will be 
available.

3.4 The majority of the grant must be used to support those suffering hardship.  The 
scheme specifies to grant usages as:

a. Council tax relief using existing discretionary discount/hardship policies (to 
capture those most likely to be affected by Covid19); and

b. Additional support outside the council tax system through local welfare or 
similar schemes;

c. A higher level of council tax reduction for those working age local council 
tax support recipients whose annual liability exceeds £150.

3.5 Cumbria-wide it was agreed to award £300 of relief to working age local council 
tax support claims.  Approval was given by the Leader of the Council, the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Executive Committee.  The initial award has 
used £206k of the grant and reduced 838 council tax bills.  The £300 awards are 
to be made throughout 2020-2021 and are pro-rata to the start of entitlement to 
council tax support.

3.6 The software required to award the relief was implemented mid-May and the 
eligible council tax bills were re-issued week commencing the 18th May 2020.  
There is no requirement for an application for this initial award.

3.7 Having allocated grant to reduce the council tax bill of working age local council 
tax support recipients by a further £300, it is proposed that the remainder is used 
for discretionary council tax hardship relief awards – this is an application based 
process.  The Council Tax Discretionary Relief Scheme is attached as Appendix 
1; this sets out the scheme framework in line with government guidance.

3.8 The demand for the hardship relief grant will be reviewed at intervals during the 
financial year, in order to ensure expenditure for 2020-2021 remains within the 
allocation and is fully spent.  Monitoring reports will be presented quarterly to the 
Executive Committee.

3.8 There are an increasing number of working age local council tax support claims; 
currently 3,844, an increase of 107 since the start of April 2020 (there were 
3,741 claims in April 2019).  Around 3,000 of working age claims receive 100% 
local council tax support.

3.9 There is a financial impact of the increasing number of local council tax support 
recipients as that scheme is funded by this Council, Cumbria County Council and 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria; proportionate to precept.  The 
budgeted council tax income is based on “normal” council tax support numbers; 
an increase in caseload reduces council tax income for the main preceptors in 
2020-2021 and 2021-2022.

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



3.10 The Director of Resources is delegated in respect of: Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax support; all determinations, assessments, awards and payments.

4.0 Consultation 
There was consultation between the main preceptors in Cumbria in modelling 
and ultimately proposing a uniform award of £300 relief, or less if the net liability 
is less.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The award of £150 and varying amounts up to £300 were modelled and 

considered.  The £300 was agreed after each district verified affordability; the 
relief is cash limited.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 Providing assistance to those suffering hardship by awarding discretionary 

council tax hardship relief underpins the Council Plan priority to support people.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 The council tax hardship relief pot is grant funded and cash limited.  The initial 

allocation has now been implemented and will continue to be an automated 
process.  The applications beyond the initial award will be administered from 
existing staff resources.  Management will review performance and make any 
temporary adjustments required.

Legal 
7.1.2 Billing authorities have discretionary powers to reduce a council tax liability under 

s13A(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the Council is 

implementing a government scheme and all applications will be considered on 
their merits.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Challenge to application 
process.

The procedure for 
considering applications 
includes reconsideration 
upon request.

The procedure is 
established and final 
decisions are the 
responsibility of the 
Director of Resources. 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9



Cash limited pot. The application process 
closes.

The grant is not spent.

Monitoring of awards and 
applications.

Grant may be repayable.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1. Council Tax Discretionary Relief Scheme

Background Documents Available
Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

1. COVID-19 hardship fund 
guidance 2020-2021

1. https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/council-
tax-covid-19-hardship-fund-2020-to-2021-guidance

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 9



Council Tax Discretionary Relief 
Scheme

(Under S13A – Local Government Finance Act 1992)

Version Control:

Document Name: Council Tax Discretionary Relief Scheme

Version: 1

Author: Revenues and Benefits Service Manager

Approved by: Director of Resources

Date Approved: May 2020

Review Date: March 2022

Page 29

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



www.barrowbc.gov.uk

2
Document Control 
Note: This document is uncontrolled if printed or reproduced

Revision History

Version 
Reviewed

Date 
Reviewed

Reviewed 
By

Description of Revision

Document Approval 

Version Approved By Date
1 Director of Resources 18th May 2020

Document Distribution

This scheme is to be distributed to all Revenues and Benefits staff, welfare partners, 
and placed on the Council’s Website.   

Page 30

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



www.barrowbc.gov.uk

3
1. Purpose
1.1 The purpose of this scheme is to outline the conditions that should be satisfied in 

order    for the Council to consider relief from Council Tax under section 13A of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

1.2 The intention is to provide relief to Council Tax payers in need of help due to 
exceptional circumstances. 

2. Scheme Benefits 
2.1 Barrow in Furness Borough Council recognises that it must be able to respond 

flexibly to the needs of the borough if it wants to support strong and sustainable 
communities. 

2.2 Section 13A discount awards will be used to help mitigate the escalation of 
needs that arise from unforeseen or exceptional circumstances, which threatens 
the ability to fund the cost of Council Tax. 

3. Introduction
3.1 Section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 provides the Council 

with additional discretionary powers to enable it to reduce the Council Tax 
liability where statutory discounts, exemptions and reductions do not apply. 

3.2 These discretionary awards can be given to:

 Individual Council Tax payers;
 Groups of Council Tax payers defined by a common set of circumstances;
 Council Tax payers within a defined area: or
 To all Council Tax payers within the Council’s area.

3.3 When deciding on whether to grant a discretionary award, the Council will 
consider each application on its merits. Principles of reasonableness will apply in 
all cases.

3.4 Given that the cost of any such award has to be met by the Borough’s Council 
Tax payers, applications must meet the underlying principle of offering value for 
money to all residents of the Borough. This will be achieved by asking for a 
range of information to support each application.

4. Scheme Details including Procedures
4.1 The Council will consider making a Section 13A award to applicants who meet 

the qualifying criteria, as specified in this scheme.

Page 31

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



www.barrowbc.gov.uk

4
4.2 The features of Barrow in Furness Borough Councils Section 13A Scheme are 

that:-

 it is discretionary; 
 an applicant does not have a statutory right to a payment; 
 the operation of the scheme is for the Council to determine; 
 the Council may choose to vary the way in which funds are allocated according 

to community needs; 
 if the applicant is dissatisfied with any decision taken on a claim that they have 

made they can ask for further details on the decision and make an appeal in line 
with Section 15 of this scheme. 

5. Government Schemes
5.1 Where appropriate, Government may introduce a specific scheme in response to 

an event. Where such schemes are introduced, funding is normally fully met by 
Government, without impact upon the local Council Tax payer.

5.2 Any such schemes that are introduced, in so far as they fall to be administered 
under S13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, will be administered in 
accordance with instructions and guidance set out by Government.

5.3 Under such circumstances, the Council will consider making an award to 
applicants after applying the conditions of this scheme.

5.4 If a cash limited scheme is introduced by Government, it will cease when all 
funds have been distributed.

6. Eligibility Criteria 
6.1 There are no pre-set criteria for the award of a Section 13A discount. Each 

application will be considered on its individual merits against the 4 conditions set 
out under 4.2 above.

7. Exceptional Financial Hardship – for those who have also 
qualified for financial support under the Barrow Borough Council Local 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

7.1 In accordance with Section 13A 1a of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 
the Council has a Council Tax Reduction Scheme which provides support 
through a discount, to those deemed to be in financial need. The scheme takes 
into account the financial circumstances of individuals.

7.2 Applications will be accepted for people who have qualified for support under the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme but who are still experiencing severe financial 
hardship. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



www.barrowbc.gov.uk

5
7.3 As part of the process, all applicants must be willing to undertake the following:

 Make a separate application for assistance;
 Provide full details of income and expenditure for the household, including 

any savings or capital;
 Seek assistance from third parties such as Citizens Advice or similar 

organisations to enable them to manage their finances;
 Demonstrate that all reasonable steps have been taken to meet their Council 

Tax liability.

8. Information Required to Support Applications
8.1 Each application shall include the following information:-

 The level of discount being requested (i.e. is this for the full year’s Council 
Tax or part of it); 

 The reason for the request (i.e. why is the discount wanted); 
 Period of time the discount is wanted for (i.e. the full financial year, part of 

financial year, or some other period of time); 
 Steps that have been taken to meet or mitigate the Council Tax liability (i.e. 

any other discounts or reductions awarded).

9. Awarding a Section 13A Discount 
9.1 In deciding whether to make an award we will have regard to the applicant’s 

circumstances. 

9.2 Applicants will be asked to supply reasonable supporting evidence to 
substantiate the answers given to the questions above. This may include, but is 
not limited to:-

 income & expenditure statements including savings and capital details; 
 confirmation of outstanding credit balances; 
 any help which is likely to be available to the applicant from other sources;
 other special circumstances the Council should be aware of.

10. Crisis
10.1 The Council will consider requests for assistance from Council Taxpayers who, 

through no fault of their own, have experienced a crisis, or an event that has 
made their property uninhabitable e.g. due to fire or flooding. 

10.2 The Council will consider applications on a case by case basis. Any reduction 
will be applied where a person remains liable to pay Council Tax and for which 
they have no recourse for compensation or to any statutory discounts or 
exemptions, or where the crisis or event is not covered by any insurance policy. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



www.barrowbc.gov.uk

6
10.3 The Council will not consider applications from Council Tax payers where 

Government guidance or scheme provides for a reduction in liability in specific 
circumstances for example, flood relief schemes. 

11. Care Leavers
11.1 The Council may reduce or remit entirely the Council Tax liability of Care 
Leavers who satisfy the following criteria:

 The person is a former relevant care leaver as defined within the Children 
(Leaving Care) Act 2000;

 The person has left care and is aged between 18 and 25;
 The person resides within the Borough and is liable to pay Council Tax to 

Barrow Borough Council.

11.2 Any award given will end on their 25th birthday.

11.3 Further information regarding Care Leavers can be obtained from the Cumbria 
Care Leaver Council Tax Exemption Policy, effective 1st April 2018.   

12. Making a Claim

 On line – please download the Council Tax Discretionary Relief application from 
www.barrowbc.gov.uk and return to Counciltax@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 For any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the Council Tax team on 
01229 404242, or via the above email address. 

 
13. Amount and Payment of S13A Award

13.1 The Council will make a decision based on individual circumstances regarding 
how much to award. Decisions on eligibility will be assessed by a senior officer, 
and the final decision rests with the Director of Resources. 

13.2 If the award relates to a scheme set by Government, as referenced under 5.1 
above, the award of any discretion will usually be set out by guidance provided. 
If this is not the case, the Council will determine the amount of award.

13.3 All awards will be made by crediting the award value to the Council Tax account 
to which it applies.

13.4 The start date of any award will not be earlier than 1st April in the year for which 
the application for assistance under this scheme is received by the Council and 
the maximum length of the award will not exceed the end of the financial year in 
which the award is given.

Page 34

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/
mailto:counciltax@barrowbc.gov.uk


www.barrowbc.gov.uk

7
13.5 S13A relief will end on either:-

1. the last day of the current financial year; or
2. the date on which the need for the relief was removed.

Whichever is the earliest date.

14. Notification 
14.1 Barrow in Furness Borough Council will notify the applicant in writing of the 

outcome of their request within 14 working days of the date of the decision, or as 
soon as reasonably practicable. Where the request for a Section 13A Discount 
award is unsuccessful, or not met in full, the Council will explain the reasons why 
the decision was made, and explain the applicant’s right of appeal. 

15. The Right to Appeal 
15.1 Appeals against the Council’s decision may be made in accordance with Section 

16 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

15.2 The Council Tax payer must in the first instance write to the Council outlining the 
reason for their appeal.

15.3 Where an appeal is received, an officer other than the original decision maker 
will reconsider the decision and notify the Council Tax payer accordingly. The 
Director of Resources will be consulted if deemed appropriate.

15.4 Where the Council Tax payer remains aggrieved, a further appeal can then be 
made to the Valuation Tribunal. This further appeal should be made within 2 
months of the decision of the Council not to grant any reductions. Full details 
can be obtained from the Valuation Tribunal 
http://www.valuationtribunal.gov.uk/Home.aspx 

16. Fraud
16.1 The Council is committed to the fight against fraud. Any applicant who tries to 

fraudulently claim a Section 13A discount may have committed an offence under 
the Fraud Act 2006. 

16.2 If the Council suspects that fraud may have occurred, the matter will be 
investigated as appropriate and this could lead to criminal proceedings.

17. Overpayments 
17.1 If the Council becomes aware that the information contained in an application for 

S13A was incorrect or false, or that relevant information was not declared, the 
Council may seek to recover the value. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1

http://www.valuationtribunal.gov.uk/Home.aspx


www.barrowbc.gov.uk

8
18. Scheme Monitoring and Review
18.1 Awards under S13A of Local Government Finance Act 1992 are cash limited 

and therefore expenditure is not intended to exceed the amount agreed either 
through a fund determined by Government, or the amount determined by the 
Director of Resources. 

18.2 This scheme will be reviewed on a regular basis and updated as appropriate to 
ensure it remains fit for purpose. 

19. Data Protection and Sharing Council Tax Information
19.1 The information provided by the Council Tax payer, or applicant, will be treated 

as confidential in accordance with the law. The Council has a duty to protect the 
public funds it administers, and may use information held about the Council Tax 
payer where the law permits, including but not limited to the prevention and 
detection of fraud. This may include sharing information with other Council 
services and other organisations who administer public funds.                           

Page 36

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Executive Committee 
3 June 2020

COVID-19 Financial Management

 
Report from:  Director of Resources

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  None

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 The Council has incurred additional costs as a result of COVID-19 and has 

experienced significant income losses.  Government provided COVID-19 
emergency funding of £55,116 in March 2020 and £659,212 in May 2020.  The 
emergency funding received so far is anticipated to be fully used by June 2020.  
All local authorities continue to submit financial information to Government on a 
monthly basis.  A number of financial decisions are set out in this report. 

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1It is recommended that the Executive Committee:- 

1. Note the emergency funding that has been received from Government and 
that further funding will be sought through the local authority monthly 
submissions;

2. Endorse support for the Leisure Centre and delegate the agreement of a 
management fee to the Chief Executive and Director of Resources, in 
consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Executive Committee;

3. Note that The Sport, Leisure and Culture Consultancy has been retained to 
provide support for the management fee project;

4. Endorse the agreement to top-up the basic pay of the specified 
contractors’ staff furloughed from the Leisure Centre, Forum and Dock 
Museum; and

5. Note the procurement delays which were approved under existing 
delegation.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 The financial impacts of COVID-19 are updated and submitted through the 

DELTA system on a monthly basis.  DELTA is the online reporting system 
provided by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG).

Page 37

Agenda Item 10



3.2 The financial impacts began in March 2020 which is part of the 2019-2020 
financial year.  The items shown as estimates are committed but not yet 
finalised.  For 2019-2020 the Council has spent £49k, has lost £46k of expected 
income and has a further commitment of spend estimated at £21k. 

Actual Estimate

IT hardware and connectivity 27 -
Supplies and purchases 2 -
Contracted services (existing) 20 19
Additional hours worked - 2
Expenditure 49 21
Service income (fees and charges) 46 -
Total financial impact 95 21

March 2020£000

3.3 For the current financial year, 2020-2021, the financial impacts are shown for the 
completed month of April and the remainder of the year projected to the 31 
March 2021; the full financial year estimate covers the anticipated impacts of the 
lockdown and recovery periods.  The contracted services impacts relate to 
existing contracts where the Council has increased the services required and 
also relate to the leisure operating contract which is set out in section 3.4 of this 
report.  The service income impacts come from the temporary closure of Council 
facilities including the Forum, the Market Hall and car parks.

Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Estimate
2020-2021

IT hardware and connectivity 36 - 12 - 48
Supplies and purchases 6 - - - 6
Contracted services (existing) 29 52 - 560 641
Additional hours worked - 6 - 17 23
Expenditure 71 58 12 577 718
Service income (fees and charges) 85 - - 876 961
Total financial impact 156 58 12 1,453 1,679

April 2020 May to March 2021£000

3.4 There will also be financial impacts from council tax and business rates.  The 
growth anticipated for 2020-2021 will be slower and may not be realised until 
later years; any collection losses will reduce council tax income for the Borough 
Council and the main preceptors; the cost of increased take-up in local council 
tax support is borne by the main preceptors.  There is work across Cumbria 
modelling these financial impacts which are over and above the financial impacts 
set out at paragraph 3.3.

Page 38

Agenda Item 10



3.5 Leisure Centre Operations

3.5.1 The Leisure Centre provides health, well-being and community activities for a 
broad customer base, particularly families and children.  The facilities and 
activities now offered significantly contribute to the aspirations and delivery of the 
Council Plan.  

3.5.2 The leisure operating contract is in its second year and with the current COVID-
19 situation the Centre is unable to operate and cannot generate any income.

3.5.3 The Council requested closure of the centre at midnight on the 20 March 2020 
and has agreed in-principle to negotiate a management fee for both the 
lockdown period and the recovery period.

3.5.4 The Council retained specialist services when tendering the Leisure Centre and 
that consultancy (The Sport, Leisure and Culture Consultancy “SLC”) has been 
retained to support the information gathering required to assess a management 
fee; working with both the Council and the Operator.  This has been directly 
awarded under existing delegation; the contract value is £6,176.

3.5.5 Members will recall that our operator is Life Leisure which is the trading name of 
Stockport Sports Trust.

3.5.6 The primary risk to the Council is the loss of the operator and in order to ensure 
that the Centre can operate and continue to benefit our residents after lockdown, 
during and after recovery, a management fee is proposed.  This is an 
exceptional situation and in addition to retaining SLC, Sport England is providing 
support across the local authority leisure sector and the Council has accessed 
their professional services grant funding programme.

3.6 Furlough

3.6.1 The Leader of the Council, the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Executive Committee 
have agreed to protect the basic pay of the staff furloughed from the Leisure 
Centre and also those furloughed from the contracted catering/cleaning at the 
Forum and Dock Museum.  The contractors shall claim the 80% furlough support 
and the Council will top-up the 20% gap.

3.7 Procurement

3.7.1 The catering contract tender submission date was the 18th March 2020 and an 
extension into April was agreed at the request of tenderers.

3.7.2 The planting and hanging baskets tender was to be published in April or May 
2020 but it was not possible to carry out the required work at the present time.  
An additional season of planting has been requested from the current supplier, 
on existing terms.

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



4.0 Consultation 
4.1 There are formal external consultations associated with this report.  There are 

discussions with the main preceptors and other districts concerning the financial 
impacts of council tax and business rates.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 There was no consideration of options to keep the Council’s facilities open; 

lockdown compliance.  The Leader of the Council, the Chair and Vice Chair of 
the Executive Committee considered the furlough of the specified contractors’ 
staff, and opted to support the workers.  The alternative to a management fee for 
the leisure operator would provide no support and would increase the risk of the 
Leisure Centre remaining closed.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 The recommendations note that the Council’s financial resilience is monitored 

and the financial impacts of the emergency are submitted to MHCLG – the 
financial resilience of the authority is vital to allow the Council Plan Priorities to 
be delivered.  In terms of the individual recommendations, the support for the 
continuity of the Leisure Centre provision is a key element in the delivery of the 
people aspects of the priorities – health, wellbeing, active residents and the 
promotion and development of healthy choices.

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 The emergency COVID-19 funding is allocated to those financial impacts that are 

directly attributable.  Financial monitoring and data submissions to MHCLG will 
continue on a monthly basis.  The financial impacts from council tax and 
business rates will be modelled with the main preceptors and other districts; the 
Cumbria Business Rates Pool remains active.  The leisure management fee is 
part of the emergency COVID-19 funding request.

7.1.2 The losses from council tax and business rates will impact on the budget setting 
for 2021-2022 and 2022-2023; the estimated losses from this financial year will 
impact 2021-2022 and the actual losses (net of the estimates) will impact 2022-
2023.  The recognition of these losses is prescribed by statute. 

Legal 
7.1.3 The Government has issued new legislation and extensive guidance to support 

local authorities with the vital work that is being done to respond to the 
coronavirus pandemic whilst ensuring essential businesses and services 
continue.  

Equality and Diversity 

Page 40

Agenda Item 10



7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the report has no direct 
Equality and Diversity implications.

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
Emergency COVID-19 funding 
leaves a budget shortfall.

The COVID-19 shortfall 
has to be funded by the 
Council.

Service delivery costs 
must be reviewed.

Financial reserves are 
set aside for specific 
purposes.  The Council’s 
ability to replenish 
reserves is very limited.

In-year budget impacts 
and mitigations will be 
monitored.

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Leisure Centre viability. Centre does not reopen. The Council will negotiate 

a management fee for 
lockdown and for the 
recovery period.

Contact Officers 
S M Roberts, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – None

Background Documents Available - None
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE
Barrow Borough Council 

Executive Committee 
3 June 2020

Cumbria CVS – People in the Lead

 
Report from:  Chief Executive

Report Author: Director of Resources

Wards:  All

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
1.1 Cumbria CVS (Council for Voluntary Service) have been successful in supporting 

community leaders and funding bids in the Borough over a three year period, 
supported in part by a financial contribution from the Council.  CVS have 
approached the Council to continue the project which provides training, support 
and a lead role in identifying new external funding that can be brought into the 
Borough.  CVS have requested a financial contribution of £15,000 over the 
lifetime of the project; £5,000 per year for three years.

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1It is recommended that the Executive Committee:- 

1. Agree to provide £5,000 per year for three years to support the Cumbria 
CVS “People in the Lead” project which levers new external funding 
into the Borough, funded from reserves.

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 This project builds community capacity through local engagement activity, 

encouraging an asset-based community development approach to build skills, 
knowledge and confidence in the local population.  It supports project 
development, funding bids, group co-ordination and the establishment of 
appropriate governance structures.  It also supports networking across the sector 
in Barrow and links potential applicants with funders at “funding fairs” to increase 
likelihood that bids will be successful.

 
3.2 The total funding of the scheme is £53,807 for 2020-2021; £160,000 over 3 

years.
 
3.3 CVS have asked the Council for £5,000 for 2020-2021and also for £5,000 in 

2021-2022 and 2022-2023.  Three year funding would help with financial stability 

Page 43

Agenda Item 11



for the work of the project and the Council should offer the future years subject to 
the balance of funding being sourced.

 
3.4 The other funders of this project for 2020-2021 are the Sir John Fisher 

Foundation £43,807 and Cumbria County Council £5,000.

3.5 In summary over the last three years, the project has:

 Developed and delivered 10 training events to 122 members of the 
community, on subjects as varied as “First Steps in Fundraising” to “Safe 
Lone Working”, responding to the communities’ requests.

 Run 3 funding fairs, linking applicants with fund-holders, attracting over 220 
individuals.

 Supported site visits to projects for funders to increase engagement and 
investment in Barrow and its people.

 Held regular steering group meetings with members of the community to 
guide the work of the project.

 Supported 57 Groups/Charities and 10 individuals to to make funding bids.
 Developed a number of one-off events and engagement opportunities, 

including Barrow Networking Event; Barrow Multi-Cultural Forum (Hate Crime 
project); “Love Barrow Families” project.

3.6 Cumbria CVS has numerous testimonials and positive responses to their work, 
and recognise that after the first three years of development of the project they 
will build a stronger impact assessment model later this year.

3.7 There is a lack of capacity to identify and access external funding within third 
sector organisations across the Borough - that gap is met by the People in the 
Lead project as demonstrated through the key outputs in paragraph 3.5.  The 
organisation supported by this project offer support to meet a wide variety of 
needs across more vulnerable communities.

3.8 The financial commitment is not budgeted but can be met from reserves.

4.0 Consultation 
There is no external consultation associated with this report.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 The alternative option is to decline the request for support.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 
6.1 The third sector is recognised in the Council Plan as a key supporter in the 

delivery of priorities and objectives.  Members will be aware that the third sector 
primarily support people but also has a support role in place shaping to ensure 
that prosperity from a diverse economy is captured for the benefit of all residents.

Page 44

Agenda Item 11



7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 
7.1.1 The £5,000 per year for three years is not budgeted.  It is proposed that the 

funding is set aside from reserves.

Legal 
7.1.2 There are no issues to raise in this report.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No –the report has no direct 

Equality and Diversity implications

Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required 
People in the Lead project 
ends.

New funding 
opportunities for third 
sector organisations 
missed or inadequate 
applications fail to 
secure funding.

Evidence of the three 
years delivered and 
ongoing monitoring of the 
project will evidence 
performance and the 
added value brought to 
the Borough.

Contact Officers 
S Plum, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – None

Background Documents Available - None
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Barrow Borough Council 
Executive Committee

3 June 2020
Heritage Lottery Fund Grant – Shipyard Town Project

 
Report from:  Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place

Report Author: Sabine Skae, Collections and Exhibition 

Manager

Wards:  All

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 
The Dock Museum has been successful in a bid for National Lottery Heritage funds 
(NLHF). The project is entitled Shipyard Town and the museum has bid successfully for 
£816,700 from NLHF.  Shipyard Town focuses on the rich heritage of Barrow’s main 
industry from the 1950s to the present day, as well as looking to the future. 

The total project costs are just under £1 million and match funding is in place from 
BAE Systems, the Sir John Fisher Foundation (and due to be from the Furness 
Maritime Trust shortly).

Shipyard Town is a two-year project that will include the creation of a new 
permanent shipbuilding gallery, the building of a research room, an upgrading the 
museum’s entrance and the introduction of a fun family-friendly “Squeeze in a Sub” 
learning zone. 

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 It is recommended to Executive Committee that they recommend to 

Council:- 

(1) That the grant of £816,700 from NLHF be accepted having regard to the 
conditions of grant and grant offer letter at appendix 1, and delegated 
authority be given to the Director of People and Place to accept the 
grant on behalf of the Council;

(2) That the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the Director 
of Resources, be authorised to enter into an agreement with NLHF for 
them to provide the funding grant in respect of the Shipyard Town 
project;

(3) To agree that the Council commits £25,000 to the project for future 
management and maintenance costs; this is programmed as £10,000 

Page 47

Agenda Item 12



from recurring revenue and £15,000 set aside in the major projects 
reserve;

(4) That the Director of People and Place, in consultation with the Director 
of Resources be authorised to procure and appoint the necessary 
resources required to implement and deliver the project within the 
approved budget and council procedures; and

(5) To agree that in order to meet the requirements in appendix 2 (2), within 
28 days of the date of Permission to Start, an application be made  to 
the Land Registry for a restriction to be entered as detailed in paragraph 
7.2.2 of the report. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 
3.1 There are two stages of the Shipyard Town Project.  Phase I (the development 

stage) commenced in November 2018.  The development stage had three key 
outcomes: recording oral histories, writing the bid for Phase II and extensive 
consultation with users and non-users of the Dock Museum.  Phase II (delivery 
stage) will commence on approval from Full Council and approval from the 
National Lottery Heritage Fund upon receiving the Permission to Start paperwork.

 3.2 A memorandum of understanding was agreed between the Dock Museum and 
BAE Systems on 13 February 2014.  One of the key points was, “BBC and BAE 
wish to create a partnership to develop the collection at the Dock Museum and will 
cooperate to promote, facilitate and implement the following programmes and 
activities.”

3.3 There have been two major phases of consultation.  In 2015 Emma Chaplin was 
commissioned to create a research and development report for Barrow Borough 
Council and BAE Systems Submarines regarding enhancement of the Dock 
Museum.  A consultation process was carried out with stakeholders including 
museum visitors representing key audience groups and museum staff.  

3.4 The Dock Museum carried out a wide-reaching consultation process during the 
development phase of the National Lottery Heritage Fund project, Shipyard Town 
(2018). The overarching aim of the consultation process was to seek feedback on 
how we can best serve the Furness community and ensure our project is beneficial 
and relevant to them. 

The consultation enabled the Dock Museum to ascertain what people like about 
the museum and what could be done to improve the facility, and in doing so 
increase visitor numbers and engage a wider range of people with heritage. 

Consulting new and existing audiences has helped the Dock Museum fine-tune 
upgrading plans and emphasised the need to bring the museum’s Barrow shipyard 
story up to date to help preserve the town’s rich industrial heritage.

The objectives of this initial phase of work have been to

 review the visitor experience

Page 48

Agenda Item 12



 outline plans to update the Shipbuilders gallery
 identify other priority areas of the visitor experience for development
 ensure that the museum experience becomes more interactive
 ensure that current spaces and resources are maximised

3.5 The second (delivery) bid to the NLHF was submitted in November 2019 and the 
project includes capital works (building a research room, installation of solar panel 
and refurbishment of two galleries), employment of three staff (Project Manager, 
Documentation Officer and Education Officer), digitisation of an important 
photographic archive donated by BAE Systems in 2019 and a suite of activities 
and educational workshops.

3.6 The Dock Museum is a local authority run museum.  The Dock Museum is the lead 
partner in the Shipyard Town project.  A working group will be set up to manage 
the project which will meet a minimum of 6 times during the 2 year duration of the 
project.  Oversight on the project will be provided by the Director of People and 
Places.

3.7 The Executive Committee received a briefing on the project to date at its meeting 
on 15 January 2020 by the Collections and Exhibitions Manager who is 
responsible for managing the Project.

3.8 A formal letter offering the grant and detailing the conditions of the offer was 
received on 13 May 2020 and is attached as Appendix 1 to the report. There is a 
timescale of 28 days from the date of the Permission to Start letter from the 
National Lottery Heritage Fund for acceptance of the Shipyard Town grant and 
conditions of grant.  The deadline was 10 June to accept the grant and provide all 
necessary information to them which is why this report is coming as an urgent item 
to Executive Committee to enable the deadline to be met. An extension has been 
sought to enable full Council decision on 16 June 2020.

3.9 The recommendations are as set out in 2 above.  

4.0 Consultation 
Extensive consultation has been carried out over a number of years of the Dock 
Museum plans with users, non-users and staff.  In 2015 an initial consultation 
process was carried out with stakeholders including museum visitors representing 
key audience groups and museum staff, this included:

 Visitor surveys. The questions determined the type of visitor, their impressions of 
the galleries and their preference in terms of subject matter and interpretation 
methods. 

 A staff consultation session to get frontline feedback on how visitors respond to 
the gallery and staff views on how it could be improved.

 Written review information from the BAE Total Performance Leadership Group

Page 49

Agenda Item 12



Clear themes emerged from across the consultation process in 2015 to inform 
future content for the gallery (and wider museum). They were:

 Bring the shipbuilding story up to date (it stops around the 1960s)

 People are interested in the graving dock and want to know more.

 People enjoy learning about Barrow’s history through real life stories, there is a 

demand for more of this type of approach where possible.

 The ship models are popular but need to be better interpreted for a deeper visitor 

experience

 The story of Barrow and its expertise in building submarines

All of the 2015 findings have been expressed in the approaches and gallery plans 
submitted to NLHF in 2019.
In 2019 the following consultation was carried out with a wide audience as listed 
below:

 Visitor surveys. These were carried out during the summer of 2019. The 
questions identified the type of visitor, their impressions of the Shipbuilders gallery 
and their preferences in terms of subject matter and interpretation methods. A total 
of 102 questionnaires were completed. 

 Non-visitor surveys. These were carried out during the summer of 2019. The 
questions determined the reasons they do not visit the museum and explore 
options as to what would encourage them to visit the museum.  A total of 84 
questionnaires were completed.

 A staff consultation session to get frontline feedback on how visitors respond to 
the gallery and staff views on how it could be improved.  Also, staff responded to 
a work visit to Windermere Jetty museum regarding interpretation and displays.

 Student volunteers have spent time at the museum helping out and learning new 
skills, and have given us feedback on what they like about the museum and what 
additions/changes they would like to see. 

 Meeting with Barrow-in-Furness Civic and Local History Society to gauge 
opinion on the project, find out ways the group can be involved in and benefit from 
the project, and adopt a mutually beneficial approach to heritage.

 Discussions with BAE Systems Submarines corporate responsibility, 
photographic and communications teams to develop a closer working relationship, 
formulate a plan for the donation of 3,000 archive images, source candidates for 
shipyard oral history recordings, and help publicise shipbuilding-related events at 
the museum.  

 Meeting of the Cumbria Coast Learning Network at the Dock Museum in 
September 2019 to discuss working with secondary schools, learning from best 
practise and brainstorming ideas.

Page 50

Agenda Item 12



 Meetings with Mail newspaper journalist and historian Bill Myers and the 
Mail archivist to discuss their shipyard photographic and story archives and plan 
more frequent publicity of museum events.

 Consultation with local secondary schools and Furness College (further 
education) as part of the project’s education plan (this consultation is covered in 
greater detail within the Education Plan).

 Analysis of visitor comments from January 2018 to the end of December 2018 
and TripAdvisor feedback.

 Consultation with local disability groups and mental health and autism 
groups to get feedback on the project and ask how we can improve the museum 
experience for local groups.

 An Evaluation of Consultation document was submitted to NLHF in 2019 based 
on Emma Chaplin’s report, 2019 consultation and the Audience Agency’s EAPR 
Plus geo-demographic document (2019).  

Summary of the Evaluation of Consultation:
It is very clear from the 2018 visitor comments and the 2019 consultation that the 
Dock Museum remains a treasured community facility.  The museum benefits from 
a strong contingent of faithful repeat visitors and also receives a lot of positive 
feedback from first-time visitors.

Results of the 2019 visitor survey show that the Shipbuilders gallery is popular and 
that visitors especially like the beautifully-crafted ship models and films.

However, it is also clear that if the museum wants to achieve one of the project’s 
key aims of engaging a wide range of people with heritage, the gallery is badly in 
need of an upgrade.

The consultation feedback has also shown that the museum suffers from a lack of 
publicity.  Many non-users said they didn’t visit the museum because of a lack of 
publicity or advertising, and 64% said better publicity was needed so they would 
know about upcoming events and exhibitions. A robust new communications and 
social media plan has been adopted, with immediate positive results.  But external 
funding is required to significantly improve the museum’s marketing and publicity 
efforts.

Two thirds of visitors surveyed want the story of the shipyard updated from the 
1960s to the present day. The same percentage of visitors want to learn more 
about the work being done at Barrow’s BAE Systems site today.  Well over half 
want to learn about technological developments at the shipyard, and a big 
percentage want more information about the ship models.

Page 51

Agenda Item 12



Bringing the story up to date in a revitalised gallery would help us celebrate the 
state-of-the-art work being done at BAE Systems Submarines, and allow members 
of the community of all ages and socio-economic status to feel part of the success 
story.

Approaching half of visitors surveyed said they would like use of a research room 
which utilises digital technology and interactives. This adds weight to the argument 
that the museum is out of date and failing to meet the expectations of modern 
audiences. 

Sixty per cent said they would like to know more about shipyard employees’ 
working lives. The recording of several shipyard oral histories for public 
consumption in the research room would help cater for that demand.

Another part of the project plan is for museum goers to have access to 3,000 
shipyard images in the research room, donated by the shipyard. The museum has 
worked hard in consultation with the BAE Systems Submarines corporate 
responsibility and photography teams to achieve this goal and thus enhance the 
visitor experience.

There is a feeling among non-users that ‘nothing has changed’ at the museum. 
Almost half surveyed said they would visit if the Shipbuilders gallery was updated. 
This strengthens the idea that a modernisation is required to attract new visitors 
and reconnect with people who last visited years ago. 

Many non-users said they felt they do not have a reason to come back to the 
museum because their children have grown up. This also reinforces the need to 
update the Shipbuilders gallery to attract adults without children.

The survey also showed there is a need for more interactives for children, 
underlining the view that an upgrade of the family learning area would also be a 
popular and necessary addition.

Engaging with secondary schools and further education outlets – a problem area 
in the past – has brought some excellent results. There are plans in place for the 
museum to be directly involved in curriculum-linked study and activities. If 
successful, this will help the younger generation learn more about heritage and so 
fulfil one of the key objectives of the project.

The surveys also showed there is an appetite for heritage walks. And, following 
consultation, the museum can now call on the help of Barrow-in-Furness Civic and 
Local History Society and IT and Media college students to make this happen.

5.0 Alternative Options 
5.1 Not to accept the grant but the bid has been put forward to enable the project to 

proceed, including additional staff resource, refurbish parts of the museum, 
provide a suite of educational activities and digitise shipyard collections.

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities 

Page 52

Agenda Item 12



6.1 “We want our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.”  A major 
enhancement to the Dock Museum and the services it provides will assist with 
achieving this goal.  We are working with a partner (BAE Systems) to do so.

6.2 “More of our residents are making healthy lifestyle choices.”
We will create two walks round Barrow showing hidden parts of Barrow’s 
shipbuilding heritage.  They will be available on an app and also in leaflet format.

6.3 “Creating a vibrant, safe & welcoming place where people want to live.”  Our plan 
is to share unseen collections and heritage of the area, to inspire those that aren’t 
sharing in the prosperity of the shipyard and bolster long-term relationships with 
museum users and current non-users and also the shipyard. 

7.0 Implications 
Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1. The grant funding will enable three members of staff to be recruited during the 
lifetime of the project: Project Manager, Education Officer and Digitisation Officer.  
Any employee recruitment will be subject to HR Policies and procedures.

7.1.2 There are significant finance and resource implications.  The Finance Department 
will provide assistance with NLHF accounting requirements.  The project will 
involve other departments especially Technical Support and IT.  A DAMS (Data 
Asset Management System) will be purchased in order to safely manage the 
museum’s digitised images and the roll out will need to be programmed into the IT 
Project Plan.  A scanner will also be purchased.

7.1.3 The procurement of contractors will be subject to the Council’s contract standing 
orders and the Public Contract Regulations 2015 where applicable.

7.1.4 The project is to be funded by the NLHF grant of £816,700, £100,000 from BAE 
Systems, £25,000 from the Council, £20,000 is requested from Furness Maritime 
Trust, £13,000 from the Sir John Fisher Foundation and £18,600 in-kind from 
volunteer time given for free.

7.1.5 The Council’s contribution is programmed as £10,000 from recurring revenue and 
£15,000 set aside in the major projects reserve.

Legal 
7.2.1 Power to enter into the funding agreement and to undertake the project is given 

by s.1 Localism Act 2011 (the general power of competence). Any employee 
recruitment will be subject to HR Policies and Procedures.

7.2.2 One of the conditions of grant is for a charge to be registered with the Land 
Registry within 28 days of the date of Permission to Start [date yet to be 
confirmed], using the following wording:-

Page 53

Agenda Item 12



 “No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate 
or by the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before 
the entry of this restriction, is to be registered without a written consent signed by 
the Trustees of the National Heritage Memorial Fund of 7 Holbein Place, London, 
SW1W 8NR or their conveyancer”.
Evidence of the registration must be provided.

Equality and Diversity 
7.2 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes/

If yes, provide summary details

There is no negative impact from accepting the NLHF grant.  We hope to have a 
positive impact on those from deprived communities through our educational 
activities.

Risk

Risk Consequence Controls required 
That the conditions of grant are 
not met 

 That the project cannot 
be delivered and the 
monies are clawed back 
from the NHLF

Ensure conditions are 
met and project managed 
within timescale.  

The project overruns. The project is not 
delivered on time and 
funding is jeopardised

Project management and 
sharing of the timeframe 
with all parties involved.

The project overspends. The lottery funding is set, 
so additional funding 
must be sourced which 
will take time.

Project management, 
proper procurement and 
 budgetary control

The project is not adequately 
resourced or supported 

The project drifts and is 
not seen as a priority

Lack of skilled 
Programme Manager

Establish the key parties 
internally and externally, 
set out requirements to 
enable to enable them to 
plan resources as there 
may be conflicting 
priorities. Establish 
regular and formal 
updates. Project Sponsor

If a suitable programme 
manager cannot be 
recruited then the risk will be 
mitigated by employing an 
experienced firm to project 
manage the Shipbuilders 

Page 54

Agenda Item 12



gallery and Squeeze in a 
Sub projects 

Social; lack of interest from
target audience

No increase in visitor 
numbers as predicted in 
the bid resulting in lack of 
faith in Dock Museum by 
community and funders

Consultation has been 
carried out with groups for 
the last four years 
regarding this project. 
New and existing 
audiences have been 
consulted as part of the 
development phase and 
the interest from our 
target groups has been 
well established.
A PR firm will be 
employed.

Contact Officer 
Sabine Skae, sskae@barrowbc.gov.uk

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section
Appendix No. Name of Appendix 
1 Grant Award and Offer letter dated 13 May 2020
2 

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document Where it is available 
1 Application for funding

2 Briefing to Executive Committee

Contact Collections and Exhibition Manager on 
sskae@barrowbc.gov.uk

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 1 of 10  
 

SF4 4075 V4.0 

13th May 2020  Our Ref: HG-17-00109 
 
Sabine Skae 
Collections and Exhibitions Manager 
Borough of Barrow-in-Furness 
The Dock Museum 
North Road 
BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
Cumbria 
LA14 2PW 
 
Dear Sabine,  
 
Shipyard Town: sharing Barrow's past, present and future shipbuilding 
 
Congratulations, your application has now been assessed, and I am delighted to inform you 
that we have decided to award you a grant of up to £816,700.00 
{eight hundred and sixteen thousand and seven hundred pounds} (82% of the total eligible 
project cost of £993,300.00) towards the refurbishment of the museum together, digitisation 
of collections and an enhanced education and activity programme. More specifically, we will 
monitor your progress against the following: 
 
Approved Purposes 

• refurbishment of the existing Shipbuilders Gallery, creating new displays, new 
interpretation and improved lighting; 

• creation of a new research room that will give visitors access to digitised documents, 
photographs and oral histories for the first time 

• installation of solar panels on the roof to reduce the museums carbon footprint and to 
reduce energy bills 

• refurbishment of the entrance to the museum to improve visitor experience and to 
explore the link between the dock and the shipyard 

• creation of an interactive family learning zone "Squeeze in a Sub"  aimed at children 
aged between 2-10 years old 

• conservation and digitisation of the museum's  shipbuilding collections and the 
recently donated BAE collections (7200 items in total) - making them available for the 
public to view 

• employment of three new full-time members of staff on fixed-term contracts. A Project 
Manager, a Digitisation Officer and an Education Officer 

• the delivery of an activities programme including an improved schools offer, early 
years workshops and a submarine festival 

• commissioning of two new films, a walking app and a museum app 

• recruitment of 10 volunteers to assist specifically with the digitisation of the project 
 
The percentage above is known as your ‘grant percentage.’ As your approved project costs 
include non-cash contributions and/or volunteer time, we have also calculated the 
percentage of cash that we will be contributing towards the project. We describe this as the 

Page 57

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 2 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

‘payment percentage’ and for your project this will be 84%.  More information on this can be 
found within the ‘Receiving a grant’ guidance. 
 
Part 1 of this letter sets out how we will work with you during the delivery phase of your 
project.  
 
Part 2 deals with the legal aspects of the grant that we are offering.  It refers to the standard 
terms of grant that you accepted when you completed the Declaration section of your online 
application. 
 
Part 3 advises you on the next steps. 
 
Part 1 – How we will work with you 
 
Delivering your project 
You will need to deliver your project in line with the proposals set out in your application. We 
will contact you shortly to arrange a start-up discussion, when we will agree a timetable for 
progress reporting and grant payment requests. More information on this can be found within 
the ‘Receiving a grant’ guidance. 
 
Keeping in touch 
We will be monitoring your progress against the approved purposes of our grant and any 
areas of risk we have identified.  This will help us to understand how well the delivery is 
advancing and alert us to any issues. 
 
Please read the ‘Receiving a grant’ guidance.  This requires you to: 
 

• obtain our permission to start the delivery phase; 

• submit progress reports at a frequency agreed between us when we have our start up 
discussion; 

• request your grant payments; 

• provide a completion and evaluation report when you have finished the delivery 
phase; 

• procure goods, works and services in accordance with EU procurement regulations 
and the ‘Receiving a grant’ guidance. 

 
The forms that you will need for requesting permission to start, requesting your grant and 
reporting your progress and completion should be accessed and submitted via your 
online account (https://forms.hlf.org.uk/officeforms/HLF_Projects.ofml), in the same 
way that you supplied your application form.  
 
 
Part 2 – The legal section 
 
Grantee name and address: Borough of Barrow-in-Furness whose registered office is at 
The Dock Museum, North Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria LA14 2PW 
 

Page 58

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 3 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

Project Reference Number: HG-17-00109 
 
Grant 
The attached appendix 1 sets out the principal elements of the approved purposes to which 
the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) has agreed to contribute along with anticipated partnership 
funding.   
 
Please be aware that if you spend less on your delivery project than the approved project 
budget, we will reduce the final grant payable.  Any reduction will be in proportion to HLF’s 
grant contribution. 
 
Standard terms of grant 
We will pay you the grant subject to you complying with our standard terms of grant which 
formed part of your application; the additional grant conditions (if any) set out below; and with 
the conditions and requirements set out in ‘Receiving a grant’. 
 
Additional grant conditions 
In addition to our standard terms of grant, you must observe the following additional 
conditions in respect of the Project: See Appendix 2  
 
Grant expiry date 
You must complete the approved purposes by 30 Nov 2022. 
 
Duration of the terms of grant 
The standard terms of grant and the additional grant conditions (if any) will last from the 
Permission to Start Date and run for a term of 20 years after the Project Completion Date.  
 
The following documents define the project for which the grant is offered: 
 
1. This letter 
2. Your application dated 18 Nov 2019 
3. Documents submitted by you in support of your application including:    
 

• Action Plan 

• Activity Plan 

• Cash Flow 

• Interpretation Plan 

• Creative an Design briefs 

• Job Descriptions  

• Project Management Structure 

• Delivery Timetable 

• Partnership agreement 
 
 
Withdrawal of the grant 
We may withdraw the grant if: 

Page 59

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 4 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

• You have already started work on the delivery phase before we have given you our 
permission to do so, in accordance with the standard terms of grant. 

• You do not start work on the delivery phase within 6 months of the date of this letter. 
 
Part 3 – Next steps 
 
You should read the following related documents: 

• ‘Receiving a grant’ setting out our monitoring requirements – [either in hard copy with 
this letter, sent via email or available online at https://closedprogrammes.hlf.org.uk/ 

• ‘Standard Terms of Grant’ sent in hard copy with this letter or available available 
online at https://closedprogrammes.hlf.org.uk/  

 
Available online:  

• ‘How to acknowledge your grant’ guidance and information on logos and how to 
promote your project https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/funding/promote-your-project  

• Template Press Release: https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/publications/press-release-
templates  

 
Permission to start 
We will only give you our permission to start when certain pre-conditions, defined in the 
‘Receiving a grant’ guidance, have been satisfied. For us to pay your grant requests by bank 
transfer (BACS), we need to see a copy of a recent bank statement (within the last three 
months), or a cheque or a paying-in slip for the relevant account, showing the bank’s name 
and address. You will need to submit this with your ‘Permission to start’ form. 
 
Please note that your Permission to start form will be released to your online account within 5 
working days of this letter. Please contact your Investment Manager using the contact details 
below if you need to access the form any earlier than this.  
 
Russell Tennant 
Investment Manager 
Email:  russell.tennant@heritagefund.org.uk 
 
 
Publicity 
It is important to publicise your award to local media so that lottery players know where their 
money has gone. However, you must keep your award confidential until we have discussed 
and agreed your publicity plans. We will publish the fact that you have been awarded a grant 
on our website within 10 days of the grant being awarded.  Your grant officer can assist you 
with queries about publicity and the media and you will receive a template press release 
which you may find helpful to issue to media once your publicity plans have been agreed. 
 
Please also contact your Investment Manager as soon as possible to agree the most 
appropriate location and nature of acknowledgment for your grant both during your project 
and after its completion.  You must make sure you include our logo on any information you 
produce about your delivery, for example, on public consultation or fundraising information or 
materials.  You must also include our logo on all designs or plans you produce, on all 

Page 60

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1

https://closedprogrammes.hlf.org.uk/
https://closedprogrammes.hlf.org.uk/
https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/funding/promote-your-project
https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/publications/press-release-templates
https://www.heritagefund.org.uk/publications/press-release-templates


 

 5 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

specialist reports or surveys, and on all tender documents that are funded by our grant.  
Please refer to the ‘How to acknowledge your grant’ guidance which explains how to do this. 
 
We wish you every success with your project, and look forward to receiving regular updates. 
 
Please contact Russell Tennant if you have any queries arising from this letter. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Debby Sutherland 
Senior Investment Manager 
 
 
Enc:  Standard Terms of Grant 
          Receiving A Grant 

Page 61

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 6 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

Appendix 1 – Approved project costs  

 
a) Delivery Phase costs 
 
Capital costs 

Cost Heading Description Cost Vat Total 

  £ £ £ 

Repair and 
conservation work 

Conservation of shipyard collection 12,854 0 12,854 

New building work Research room 71,500 0 71,500 

Other capital work 

Shipbuilders gallery refurb, solar panels, 
entrance area, DAMS, family learning space, 
furniture, kiosks and software, conservation 
storage 

403,608 0 403,608 

Digital outputs 
Two films, heritage trail app, leaflets, museum 
app, button panel and master reel 

48,623 0 48,623 

Other costs (capital) Storage of photographic collections 5,720 0 5,720 

Equipment and 
materials (capital) 

Scanners 1,747 0 1,747 

Professional fees 
relating to any of the 
above (capital) 

Architect and structural engineer fees 5,280 0 5,280 

Total Costs 549,332 0 549,332 

 
 
Activity costs 

Cost Heading Description Cost Vat Total 

  £ £ £ 

New staff costs 
Digitisation Officer: 24 months £68,880; 
Education Officer: 18 months  £51,660; 
Project Manager; 24 months £80,460 

201,000 0 201,000 

Training for staff 
Project Management Professional (PMP), 
GEM training, Photoshop, Intellectual 
Property training, Mimsy 

2,590 0 2,590 

Training for volunteers 
10 volunteers would have budget of £200 
per annum 

4,000 0 4,000 

Travel for staff 
Some training to be held at the Dock 
Museum 

400 0 400 

Travel and expenses for 
volunteers 

10 volunteers would each have a budget of 
£200 p.a. 

4,000 0 4,000 

Other costs (activity) Transport for schools 4,590 0 4,590 

Equipment and materials 
(activity) 

Printing costs for 6 new quizzes, materials 
for educational workshops and family 
workshops 

5,870 0 5,870 

Professional fees Film night, Submarine Festival, 5 x family 11,680 0 11,680 

Page 62

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 7 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

Cost Heading Description Cost Vat Total 

  £ £ £ 

relating to any of the 
above (activity) 

activities 

Total Costs 234,130 0 234,130 

 
 
Other costs 

Cost Heading Description Cost Vat Total 

  £ £ £ 

Recruitment Recruitment for posts 2,182 0 2,182 

Publicity and promotion 
Posters and print costs, 10 Mail adverts, 
Cumbria Tourism PR services, Coach 
Tours UK ad, BBC History mag ad 

26,250 0 26,250 

Evaluation 
8 weeks of external company providing 
qualitative and quantitative evaluation 

20,000 0 20,000 

Full Cost Recovery N/A 0 0 0 

Contingency 
10% cost of project as majority of costs 
known 

87,596 0 87,596 

Inflation Inflation 20,000 0 20,000 

Increased management and 
maintenance costs 
(maximum five years) 

Maintenance of capital assets over 5 
years 

25,000 0 25,000 

Volunteer time 
48 days for digitisation volunteers + 76 
days education volunteers 

18,600 0 18,600 

Other costs Scanning of plans 10,210 0 10,210 

Total Costs 209,838 0 209,838 

 
b) Delivery Phase income 
 
Delivery income 

Income Heading Description Secured 
Total 
(£) 

Local authority 
Contribution from museum's 
donations 

Yes 20,000 

Private donation - 
Trusts/Charities/Foundations 

Grant from Sir John Fisher 
Foundation 

No 13,000 

Private donation - corporate BAE Systems contribution Yes 100,000 

Increased management and maintenance 
Costs (maximum five years) 

5 years increased costs No 25,000 

Volunteer time 
Digitisation volunteers, 
education and access 
volunteers 

No 18,600 

Grant 816,700 

Total Income 993,300 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 8 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

 Appendix 2:  Conditions 

1. Local-authority Grantee 

 Evidence of local-authority decision-making process 

 

(a) Within 28 days of the date of the Grant Notification Letter, you must send us a 

certified copy (signed to confirm it is a true copy) of the document recording your 

decision (or the decision of the relevant properly constituted committee, executive or 

authorised officer) authorising you to accept the terms of grant, together with a 

statement containing the information set out in paragraph b below. 

 

(b) The statement must include the following information. 

 

• The power (statutory or otherwise) you have and which you have used to 
accept the terms of grant. 

• An extract of that part of your policy framework under which you have 
accepted the terms of grant. 

• The executive arrangements under which your decision to accept the terms of 
grant was made. 

• The considerations that you took into account in using the powers and the 
procedure under which any consultation took place and the decision was 
made. 

• The authority under which the Declaration forming part of the Application has 
been signed on your behalf. 

(c) Without affecting clause 32 you must (if we think it is necessary) confirm your 

decision in whatever way we direct.  Within seven days of confirming, you must send 

us evidence of this. 

 

(d) We may withdraw the Grant (after considering the matters referred to in paragraphs 

1a and 1b) if we are not satisfied that the terms of grant are valid and binding on you. 

 

Page 64

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 9 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

(e) Within 21 days of sending us the document and information needed under paragraph 

1a (or evidence of the confirmation of the decision in line with paragraph 1c), we may 

ask that you get the written opinion of a barrister, in a form satisfactory to us, asking 

for his or her opinion on whether: 

 

• the powers you are relying on in accepting the terms of grant do allow you to 
enter into these arrangements; 

• you have followed correctly all procedural requirements in using those powers 
and have acted in a reasonable and proper way; and 

• you have taken account of only, and all, relevant considerations in using those 
powers. 

 You must send us the barrister’s opinion and make sure that it is addressed to us as 

well as to you. You must also make sure that the barrister confirms we may rely on 

his or her opinion for our own purposes. 

 

(f) You acknowledge that neither any documents or information that you send us, nor the 

fact that we may then have paid you part of the Grant, will affect our right to rely on 

the promise in paragraph g below. 

 

(g) You promise that: 

 

• you have the authority to accept the terms of grant; 

• in using that authority you have acted in good faith, in a reasonable and 
proper way, for a proper purpose, without breaking any procedural 
requirement and in considering only (and all) relevant considerations; and 

• your decision to accept the terms of grant is one that any reasonable local 
authority (applying the laws that are relevant to it) could have reached. 

 

(h) Within one month of the end of each of the 10 years after you finish the work, you 

must send us detailed accounts, certified by your chief finance officer, showing the 

funding and resources you used on the Property in the year before. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1



 

 10 of 10  
SF4 4075 V4.0 

 

 
 

 

2. Restriction on Title  
 

(a) Within 28 days of the date of Permission to Start, you must apply to the Land Registry 
for a restriction to be entered using the following wording: 
 
“No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate or by 
the proprietor of any registered charge, not being a charge registered before the entry 
of this restriction, is to be registered without a written consent signed by the Trustees 
of the National Heritage Memorial Fund of 7 Holbein Place, London, SW1W 8NR or 
their conveyancer”.  

 

(b) Your solicitor must forward to us as soon as possible updated Office Copy Register 
Entries once the restriction has been registered at HM Land Registry.  

  

 

 

 
 

Page 66

Agenda Item 12
Appendix 1


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Housing Management Forum Recommendations
	8 Marina Village Remediation
	9 COVID-19 Council Tax Hardship
	Barrow S13A CT Discretionary Relief Scheme 18052020

	10 COVID-19 Financial Management
	11 Cumbria CVS - People in the Lead
	12 Heritage Lottery Fund Grant - Shipyard Town Project
	HLG-17-00109 Second round pass


